
 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, May 13, 2025 

6:30 P.M. 
 

If you need any assistance due to a disability, please contact the Planning 
Department at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at 

planning@ypsitownship.org or 734-544-4000 ext. 1. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 25, 2025, AND APRIL 8, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. CHILD GROUP DAYCARE – 9674 FALMOUTH DRIVE – PARCEL K-11-35-109-160 – TO 

CONSIDER THE SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW APPLICATION OF MELINDA CUTLIFF TO 
PERMIT A CHILD GROUP DAYACRE HOME, PROVIDING CARE FOR UP TO TWELVE (12) 
CHILDREN ON A SITE ZONED R-3 ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL.  

B. CLASS A DESIGNATION – MNL INVESTMENTS LLC – 10131 TEXTILE ROAD – PARCEL K-
11-24-300-006 – TO CONSIDER THE CLASS A NON-CONFORMING DESIGNATION 
APPLICATION OF MNL INVESTMENTS LLC TO PERMIT THE SIGN COPY CHANGE OF AN 
EXISTING LEGAL NON-CONFORMING POLE SIGN. 

C. CLASS A DESIGNATION – YPSI OIL COMPANY INC – 2120 RAWSONVILLE ROAD – 
PARCEL K-11-24-100-005 – TO CONSIDER THE CLASS A NON-CONFORMING 
DESIGNATION APPLICATION OF YPSI OIL COMPANY INC. TO PERMIT THE SIGN COPY 
CHANGE OF AN EXISTING LEGAL NON-CONFORMING POLE SIGN. 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. CHILD GROUP DAYCARE – 9674 FALMOUTH DRIVE – PARCEL K-11-35-109-160 – TO 

CONSIDER THE SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW APPLICATION OF MELINDA CUTLIFF TO 
PERMIT A CHILD GROUP DAYACRE HOME, PROVIDING CARE FOR UP TO TWELVE (12) 
CHILDREN ON A SITE ZONED R-3 ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL.  

B. CLASS A DESIGNATION – MNL INVESTMENTS LLC – 10131 TEXTILE ROAD – PARCEL K-
11-24-300-006 – TO CONSIDER THE CLASS A NON-CONFORMING DESIGNATION 
APPLICATION OF MNL INVESTMENTS LLC TO PERMIT THE SIGN COPY CHANGE OF AN 
EXISTING LEGAL NON-CONFORMING POLE SIGN. 

C. CLASS A DESIGNATION – YPSI OIL COMPANY INC – 2120 RAWSONVILLE ROAD – 
PARCEL K-11-24-100-005 – TO CONSIDER THE CLASS A NON-CONFORMING 
DESIGNATION APPLICATION OF YPSI OIL COMPANY INC. TO PERMIT THE SIGN COPY 
CHANGE OF AN EXISTING LEGAL NON-CONFORMING POLE SIGN. 
  

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 

 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT  

 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 



   
 

 1 of 9  
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, March 25, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

  

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 

Elizabeth El-Assadi 
Bill Sinkule 
Gloria Peterson 
Larry Doe 
Bianca Tyson 
Amy Kehrer  

STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 

Sally Elmiger - Carlisle Wortman 
Dennis McLain – Township Attorney 
  

• CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM 

MOTION: Ms. El-Assadi called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 
 

• APPROVAL OF MARCH 11, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MOTION: Mr. Doe MOVED to approve the March 11, 2025, regular meeting 
minutes. The MOTION was SECONDED by Ms. Peterson and PASSED by 
unanimous consent. 

 

• APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to amend the agenda by moving the New Business 
item to Public Hearing as Item B (Special Land Use). The MOTION was 
SECONDED by Ms. Kehrer and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

  

• PUBLIC HEARINGS 



   
 

 2 of 9  
 

a. SPECIAL LAND USE – TORTILLA TITA – 585 JOE HALL DRIVE – 
PARCEL K-11-17-363-029 – TO CONSIDER THE SPECIAL LAND USE 
REQUEST OF FRANCISCO ALVAREZ/MARTHA JARAMILLO TO PERMIT 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 6,000 SQUARE FOOT TWO-STORY FOOD 
PROCESSING FACILITY ON A 1.093 – ACRE SITE ZONED I-T, 
INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY. 
 
Sally Elmiger (Planning Consultant-Carlisle Wortman) presented to the 
Commission the application from Francisco Alvarez and Martha Jaramillo 
representing Tortillas Tita requesting authorization for the construction of a 6,000 
sq. ft. two-story tortilla manufacturing facility and the construction of the associated 
parking areas, driveways, utilities, stormwater management system, and 
landscaping. 
 
Some trees would need to be removed from the site and the ordinance would require 
some trees to be replaced or the applicant may pay into the Township Tree Fund, 
based on the number of replacement trees determined by the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Elmiger suggested that the Planning Commission speak to the applicant and 
discuss the preferences. 
 

The Township Planning recommends Planning Commission condition any 
Preliminary Site Plan approval on the applicant providing a plan showing the 
location of the security cameras/alarms, and manufacturer information documenting 
that the equipment meets ordinance requirements, at the Final Site Plan review. 
Planning Commission to consider alternative landscaping around the bioretention 
area. The applicant notes that a “detention basin” is not proposed for this site, but 
stormwater will be handled by a “bioretention area” instead. The Planning 
Commission may waive or modify any landscaping requirements. 

The Planning Commission would need to discuss with the applicant about the odor 
control from the facility. 

Ms. Elmiger shared with the Commission that the facility is a manufacturing 
operation in the district. It is considered a special land use, and it was evaluated 
against the special land use standards in the ordinance. Carlisle Wortman's opinion 
is that the project will contribute to the economic growth, diversification, and 
innovation within the IT zoning district. The surrounding land uses are a mix of 



   
 

 3 of 9  
 

logistics, warehousing and light industrial uses. This facility fits in with the 
surrounding land uses. The Township's Master Plan designates this location as 
township core and light industrial use that aligns with the vision in the master plan, 
and the site is adequately served by essential public services. The facility is a small 
operation and will not create any additional public costs. 
 
Commissioner Sinkule requested Ms. Elmiger to elaborate on the statement in 
regard to the trees; If “planting on another site” is chosen, the Planning Commission 
to approve the chosen site. Ms. Elmiger stated that the Planning Commission can 
decide if the site would be considered a public site or for a specific use. The final 
site plan process would require the applicant to provide documentation on the 
agreement with whatever that public entity is. 
 
Commissioner Sinkule inquired about the Planning Department’s recommendation 
in regard to rain garden versus bioretention area; Ms. Elmiger’s recommendation 
was to get input from Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission (WCWRC) 
since they have specific planting requirements. 
 
Commissioner Peterson inquired about the number of replacement trees; Ms. 
Elmiger stated that 38 new replacement trees are required with a minimum of 2-inch 
caliper. The Commission is permitted to reduce the number of trees by 30% (27 
trees). 
 
Commissioner Sinkule inquired on the sidewalk; The Engineer representing 
Tortillas Tita informed the Planning Commission on the existing site adjacent to the 
property, and the existing concrete sidewalk that would be used. 
 
The applicants Francisco Alvarez and Martha Jaramillo (co-owners of Tortillas 
Tita) shared with the Planning Commission that they have a letter from the adjacent 
property that states no complaints on the odor from the facility. The tortillas are 
made from scratch and are authentic and healthy (FDA compliance). Tortillas Tita 
supplies tortillas to Meijer in the area, and the goal is to increase the volume to be 
supplied to more stores. Francisco Alvarez stated that he is a mechanical engineer 
(recently retired). 
 
Mr. Alvarez shared information on the ventilation at the facility; the process would 
require the use of 4 ovens/3 ventilators, and the exhaust fans in the building would 



   
 

 4 of 9  
 

pull out the odor from the facility and the air would be circulated (like a baking 
facility). The facility is 2000 sq ft, and the hours of operation are 7 a.m. – 3 p.m. 
(currently with one shift). Tortillas Tita has been in business for 15 years; with six 
employees and Tortillas Tita does their own delivery (vans). A shipping dock 
(50x10 ft) is located at the rear of the building. 
 
The engineer representing Tortillas Tita informed the Planning Commission of the 
plans for landscape; the drawings of the rain garden will be reviewed by the 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner's Office. An agent would 
review the stormwater calculations and engage a registered landscape architect that 
would review the plans. The plan is to plant 11 river birches around the perimeter 
of the rain garden, along with 31 red twig dogwoods that would be interspaced with 
the river birches. Plans to plant a variety (170 flowers) within the rain garden. 
 
Commissioner Peterson emphasized that she preferred the tree fund contribution, 
and she requested the applicant to submit options regarding it. The engineer stated 
that the applicant is open to the request of the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Elmiger requested the Planning Commission their decision on the 30% 
reduction of replacement trees; the Board agreed. 
 
The engineer informed the Planning Commission that he has provided a plan 
showing the location of the security cameras/alarms, and manufacturer information 
documenting that the equipment meets ordinance requirements. The applicant 
would be working along with the Sheriff’s office and reports would be submitted at 
the final site plan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 7:02 P.M. 
  
Hearing None. 
  
PUBLIC HEARING ENDED AT 7:03 P.M. 
  
MOTION: Ms. Kehrer MOVED to approve the Special Land Use Permit submitted 
by Francisco Alvarez and Martha Jaramillo, to permit the construction of a 6,000 
sq. ft., two-story food processing facility located at 585 Joe Hall Drive, Ypsilanti, 



   
 

 5 of 9  
 

MI 48197, Parcel K-11-17-363-029, as the proposal meets the criteria in Article 10, 
Special Land Use with the following conditions: 
 

1. Tree Replacement: The Township reviews and approves the calculations for 
“payment in-lieu-of planting replacement trees” to determine the tree fund 
contribution amount, based on typical fees charged by a landscape contractor 
to purchase, deliver, and install a 2.0-inch caliper tree, at the Final Site Plan 
approval. The Planning Commission agrees to reduce the required number of 
trees to 27. 

2. Security Cameras: Applicant provides a plan showing the location of the 
security cameras/alarms, and manufacturer information documenting that the 
equipment meets ordinance requirements, at Final Site Plan review. 

 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Tyson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes); Ms. El-
Assadi (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Ms. Kehrer (Yes). 

MOTION PASSED. 

 

b. SPECIAL LAND USE – TORTILLA TITA – 585 JOE HALL DRIVE – 
PARCEL K-11-17-363-029 – TO CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN APPLICATION OF FRANCISCO ALVAREZ/MARTHA JARAMILLO 
TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 6,000 SQUARE FOOT TWO-
STORY FOOD PROCESSING FACILITY ON A 1.093 – ACRE SITE ZONED I-
T, INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY. 

 

MOTION: Ms. Kehrer MOVED to approve the Preliminary Site Plan submitted by 
Francisco Alvarez and Martha Jaramillo, to permit the construction of a 6,000 sq. 
ft., two-story food processing facility located at 585 Joe Hall Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 
48197, Parcel K-11-17-363-029, as the proposal meets the requirements and 
standards of the Zoning Ordinance with the following conditions: 
 

1. Tree Replacement: The Township reviews and approves the calculations for 
“payment in-lieu-of planting replacement trees” to determine the tree fund 



   
 

 6 of 9  
 

contribution amount, based on typical fees charged by a landscape contractor 
to purchase, deliver, and install a 2.0-inch caliper tree, at the Final Site Plan 
approval. The Planning Commission agrees to reduce the required number of 
trees to 27. 

2.  Security Cameras: Applicant provides a plan showing the location of the 
security cameras/alarms, and manufacturer information documenting that the 
equipment meets ordinance requirements, at Final Site Plan review. 

 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Ms. Tyson. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Tyson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes); Ms. El-
Assadi (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Ms. Kehrer (Yes). 

MOTION PASSED. 

 

• OLD BUSINESS 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN – HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS – 350 & 460 JOE 
HALL DRIVE – PARCEL K-11-38-363-029 & K-11-38-363-003 – TO CONSIDER 
THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPLICATION OF ANDY PATEL TO PERMIT 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 101-ROOM, 4-STORY HOTEL FOR A 4.68-ACRE 
SITE ZONED I-T, INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY. 

 

Ms. Elmiger reminded the Planning Commission that the hotel application was 
previously considered by the Planning Commission last year, but since the PC review, 
the applicant has increased the number of rooms by 8 and parking by 8. There are no 
other changes to the site plan. In addition, on December 4, 2024, the applicant received 
a height variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

The site has a significant amount of woodland area with the exception of the northeastern 
corner of the lot; where tree relocation or replacement is not feasible within the 
woodland area, or on the property where the activity is to be conducted, or on other 
approved property within the township, the permit grantee shall pay into the township 
tree fund monies for tree replacement. The applicant shall convert one of their parking 
spaces to an additional barrier-free space. The total number of rooms would be 100. 



   
 

 7 of 9  
 

Commissioner Sinkule inquired about the parcels; Ms. Elmiger stated that the applicants 
would have to combine the parcels, which would be completed during the final site plan 
process. 
 
Dan Lewis (civil engineer; VK Civil) representing the applicant, Andy Patel who is 
absent from the meeting. The updates from the previous meeting are as follows: The 
FDC location was moved to the west side of the building. With a change in the driveway, 
the possibility of adding more rooms was accomplished. Dan Lewis informed the 
Planning Commission that there would be a total of 100 rooms. WCWRC has approved 
the permits for the driveways and the approval within the Joe Hall Drive ROW. The 
County Water Resource Commissioner has requested the move of the storm piping 
system by half an inch. OHM and YCUA for revised payments. 
 
Commissioner Peterson inquired about the completion of the project; Dan Lewis stated 
that they would need to complete the final site plan and traffic lights. The goal is to have 
the project complete within a year. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to approve the Preliminary Site Plan submitted by 
Andy Patel, InterContinental Hotels Group, to permit the construction of a 100-room, 
four-story hotel located at 350 & 450 Joe Hall Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-
38-363-029, and Parcel K-11-38-363-003, as the proposal meets the requirements and 
standards in the Zoning ordinance with the following conditions: 
 
• The applicant shall obtain the Final Site Plan and Detailed Engineering Approval; 

and shall obtain all outside agency permits and approvals for the construction of the 
hotel including, but not limited to, the property owner and/or developer entering 
into a Road Improvement Agreement with the WCWRC for the installation of a 
traffic signal at the intersection of Huron Street and Joe Hall Drive as part of this 
development. 

 
 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Tyson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes); Ms. El-
Assadi (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Ms. Kehrer (Yes). 

MOTION PASSED. 



   
 

 8 of 9  
 

 

• NEW BUSINESS 

None to Report 

 

• OPEN DISCUSSIONS FOR ISSUES NOT ON AGENDA 
 
• Correspondence Received 

None to Report 

  

• Planning Commission members 

None to Report 

  

• Members of the audience 

None to Report 

  

• TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report 

  

• ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report 

  

• TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 

None to Report 

  

• PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

None to Report 



   
 

 9 of 9  
 

  

• OTHER BUSINESS 

None to Report 

  

• ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to adjourn at 7:21 pm. The MOTION was 
SECONDED by Mr. Doe and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

  

=============================================================== 

Respectively Submitted by Minutes Services LLC 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 6 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, April 8, 2025 
6:30 pm 

  

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 

Elizabeth El-Assadi 
Larry Doe 
Amy Kehrer 
Daryl Kirby 
Gloria Peterson 
Bill Sinkule 
Bianca Tyson 
 
STAFF AND CONSULTANTS 

Sally Elmiger - Carlisle Wortman 
Dennis McLain – Township Attorney 
  

• CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM 

MOTION: Ms. El-Assadi called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

  

• APPROVAL OF MARCH 11, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MOTION: Mr. Doe MOVED to approve the March 11, 2025, regular meeting 
minutes. The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Kirby and PASSED by unanimous 
consent. 

  

• APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to amend the agenda by moving Preliminary Site 
Plan to #6 Old Business, Item B and adding Special Land Use as #6 Old Business, 
Item A . The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe and PASSED by unanimous 
consent. 



Page 2 of 6 
 

  

• PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None to report. 
 

• OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. SPECIAL LAND USE – UPH YPSILANTI PROPERTY, LLC – 1410 S. HURON 

STREET – PARCEL K-11-38-280-018 – TO CONSIDER THE SPECIAL LAND USE 
APPLICATION OF UPH YPSILANTI PROPERTY, LCC TO PERMIT THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 4,330 SQ. FT. CULVER’S RESTAURANT WITH A DRIVE-
THROUGH FOR A 3.43-ACRE SITE ZONED TC, TOWN CENTER, WITH A SITE 
TYPE D DESIGNATION. 

 
Sally Elmiger, Planning Consultant for Carlisle Wortman, reminded the 
Commission that the application from UPH Ypsilanti LLC was presented to them 
earlier at the February meeting. The Planning Commission had postponed the 
project so that the applicant could revise the variances. The Zoning Board of 
Appeals had received the variances that were needed for the project, and it was 
submitted on April 2, 2025. 
 

Carlisle Wortman’s opinion is that the project meets the criteria in the ordinance, 
and the proposal is consistent with the Master Plan and the vision for the town 
center zoning district. 
 
Ms. Elmiger discussed the following items that would require the consideration of 
the Planning Commission: 

 
• A waiver of striping/signage of loading space for deliveries. 
• The applicant is proposing to locate the loading area in the parking lot. The 

applicant has stated that loading/unloading happens before the opening of the 
restaurant, and this will not create a conflict between the loading truck in the 
parking lot and the public wanting to park their cars before dining at the 
restaurant. 

• Determine if no screen wall along the parking lot edge facing Huron St. meets 
the criteria in the ordinance to waive the masonry screen wall. 



Page 3 of 6 
 

• The ordinance criteria regarding waiving/modifying requirements for 30 
deficient landscape trees. The reason for open spaces with no trees is because 
of the underground utilities. 

• A “transparency alternative” for the parking lot side (north façade), using the 
patio to count toward the 30% transparency requirement on this façade. The 
Planning Commission can count this outdoor patio as a transparency 
alternative to help meet that 30% so both the transparency requirement and the 
patio have the same goal, which would encourage pedestrian interaction 
between the people inside the building and the people walking down the 
sidewalk. 

 
Ms. Elmiger informed the Planning Commission that the comments from the 
various agencies would be dealt with in the final site plan. 
 
Mr. Kirby inquired about the number of trees deficient. Ms. Elmiger stated that the 
proposed plan is deficient of 24 trees under the general landscaping requirement 
and deficient of six trees in the parking lot interior landscaping. 
 
Ms. Elmiger presented the utility plan which includes the storm water and 
underground irrigation system. 
 
Yoji Seo, engineer with Roosien & Associates, was present at the meeting to 
discuss any questions from the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Peterson inquired about the timeline for the start and the completion of the 
project. Charles Paisley, applicant, stated that his engineer believes that the project 
would be completed by mid-June for permitting, and about180 days to complete 
the project from start to finish. 
 
Mr. Sinkule inquired about the hours of operation for Culver’s Restaurant. Mr. 
Paisley informed the Planning Commission that the hours of operation are 10 am 
to 11 pm with about 50 employees at the location. 
 
Ms. El-Assadi inquired about the loading/delivery hours. Mr. Paisley stated that 
most of the deliveries usually happen in the middle of the night or as early as 8 am. 
 



Page 4 of 6 
 

MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to approve the Special Land Use request for the 
construction of a 4,330 sq. ft. restaurant and drive-through at the property located 
at 1410 S. Huron Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-38-280-018, as the 
proposal meets the criteria in Article 10, Special Land Use, in the Zoning 
ordinance with the following conditions: 

 
1. Any future land divisions of this property will result in a minimum two-acre 

parcel for the Culver’s Restaurant site to comply with the minimum site area 
for drive-through facilities and the Site Type D standards. 

2. The proposal as presented receives Preliminary and Final Site Plan approval. 
 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Ms. Kehrer. 
 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Doe (Yes); Ms. Kehrer (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Mr. 
Sinkule (Yes); Ms. Tyson; Mr. Kirby (Yes); Ms. El-Assadi (Yes). 
 
MOTION PASSED. 

 
B. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN – UPH YPSILANTI PROPERTY, LLC – 1410 S. 

HURON STREET – PARCEL K-11-38-280-018 – TO CONSIDER THE 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPLICATION OF UPH YPSILANTI PROPERTY, LCC 
TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 4,330 SQ. FT. CULVER’S RESTAURANT 
WITH A DRIVE-THROUGH FOR A 3.43-ACRE SITE ZONED TC, TOWN CENTER 
WITH A SITE TYPE D DESIGNATION. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Sinkule MOVED to approve the Preliminary Site Plan request for 
the construction of a 4,330 sq. ft. restaurant and drive-through at the property 
located at 1410 S. Huron Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-38-280-018, as 
the proposal meets the requirements and standards in the Zoning ordinance with 
the following conditions: 

 
1. Any future land divisions of this property will result in a minimum two-acre 

parcel for the Culver’s Restaurant site to comply with the minimum site area 
for drive-through facilities and the Site Type D standards. 

2. The Planning Commission waives striping/signage of loading space for 
deliveries, as described on Sheet C-102. 



Page 5 of 6 
 

3. The Planning Commission determines that no screen wall along the parking lot 
edge facing Huron St. meets the criteria in the ordinance to waive the masonry 
screen wall. 

4. The Planning Commission waives the requirement for 30 deficient landscape 
trees. 

5. The Planning Commission considers the patio to count as a “transparency 
alternative” for the 30% transparency requirement in the parking lot (north 
façade) of the building. 

6. The applicant shall revise all plan sheets to reflect the results of this evening’s 
discussion before submitting the plans for Final Site Plan review. 

7. The applicant shall address all outstanding comments from reviewing agencies 
during the Final Site Plan stage.  

8. The applicant shall obtain all applicable internal and outside agency permits 
prior to construction. 
 

The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Doe. 
 
Roll Call Vote: Ms. Tyson (Yes); Mr. Sinkule (Yes); Mr. Kirby (Yes); Mr. Doe 
(Yes); Ms. Kehrer (Yes); Ms. Peterson (Yes); Ms. El-Assadi (Yes);  
 
MOTION PASSED. 

 

• NEW BUSINESS 

None to Report. 

 

• OPEN DISCUSSIONS FOR ISSUES NOT ON AGENDA 

 

• Correspondence Received 

None to Report. 

  

• Planning Commission members 

None to Report. 



Page 6 of 6 
 

  

• Members of the audience 

None to Report. 

 

• TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report. 

 

• ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
Commissioner El-Assadi informed the Planning Commission that the Zoning Board 
of Appeals had approved a sign permit across from Ipsy High School on Packard Rd. 

 

• TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 

None to Report. 

 

• PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

None to Report. 

 

• OTHER BUSINESS 

None to Report. 

 

• ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION: Mr. Kirby MOVED to adjourn at 6:56 pm. The MOTION was 
SECONDED by Mr. Sinkule and PASSED by unanimous consent. 
 
========================================================== 
Respectively Submitted by Minutes Services   

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Staff Report 
Group Daycare Home 

Special Conditional Use Application 
9674 Falmouth Dr., Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

 
May 7, 2025 

 
CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 
 
The Office of Community Standards received an application for a Special Land Use permit 
to establish a [Child] Group Day Care Home, providing care for up to twelve (12) children, 
for a site zoned R-3 One Family Residential, located at 9674 Falmouth Dr., Ypsilanti, MI 
48197, Parcel K-11-35-109-160.  
 
Group Day Care Homes for 6-12 children in the R-3 District require a Special Land Use 
permit, approved by the Planning Commission.  The Zoning Administrator has the 
authority to waive the requirement for a site plan.  For this case, due to the fact that no 
physical changes to the site or building are being proposed, submission of a site plan was 
not required; however, the applicant was required to submit a property survey.  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT 
 
Melinda Cutliff 
9674 Falmouth Dr., Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
CROSS REFERENCES 
Zoning Ordinance citations: 

• Article 4 – District Regulations: Sec. 420. – Residential Use Table  
• Article 10 – Special Land Use: Sec. 1003. – Standards for Special Land Uses 
• Article 11 – Specific Provisions: Sec. 1155. – State-Licensed Residential Child 

and Adult Care Facilities 
 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (ZEA) citation: 
• MCL 125.3206 Residential use of property; adult foster care facilities; family or 

group childcare home 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
The subject site is a 0.2-acre parcel, zoned R-3 One Family Residential, occupied by a 
single-family residence, and located adjacent to other single-family residential properties. 
The site is a two-story, 2,592 square foot single-family residential dwelling with an 
attached two-car garage. The site is zoned, developed, and used for single-family 
residential purposes.   
 
The front building façade faces Falmouth Dr., and the entrance driveway is on Falmouth 
Dr. The two-car garage faces north.  
 
The Township Zoning Ordinance and the State of Michigan define a [Child] Group Day 
Care Home  as a private home in which more than six (6) but not more than twelve (12) 
children are given care and supervision for periods of less than twenty-four (24) hours a 
day unattended by a parent or legal guardian except children related to an adult member 
of the family by blood, marriage, or adoption.  It includes a home that gives care to an 
unrelated child for more than four (4) weeks during a calendar year.  
 
If approved, the Special Land Use would permit the applicant to establish a Group Day 
Care Home with more than six but no more than 12 children.   

 
Aerial and street-view photos of the subject site are provided on the following pages. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

9674 Falmouth Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 – Aerial Photograph 
 

 
 
On August 10, 2025, staff visited the site and confirmed that site conditions are as 
depicted in BS&A / Google Street View. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Google Street View – May 2023 – View from Falmouth Drive 
 

 
 

 
Existing Use, Zoning and Master Plan 
Direction Use Zoning Master Plan 
North Residential R-3 Open Space, Neighborhood 

Preservation, and Cluster 
Development 

South Residential R-3 Open Space, Neighborhood 
Preservation, and Cluster 

Development 
East Residential R-3 Open Space, Neighborhood 

Preservation, and Cluster 
Development 

West Residential R-3 Open Space, Neighborhood 
Preservation, and Cluster 

Development 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

NATURAL FEATURES 
 
No natural features will be impacted by this proposed project. 
 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
A Group Child Care Home of this size must meet the standards in both the Zoning 
Ordinance and the state Zoning Enabling Act: 

• Zoning Ordinance: 
a. The ordinance requires that the Planning Commission consider the Special 

Land Use standards in Sec. 1003, Standards for Special Land Uses, and 
b. The requirements that are specific to a Group Day Care Home in Sec. 1155, 

State-Licensed Child and Adult Care Facilities.   
• The state Zoning Enabling Act (Section 125.3206(4)) also has rules regarding 

[Child] Group Day Care Homes (although they call them “group child care homes.”)  
This law stipulates that a group childcare home shall be issued a special use 
permit, conditional use permit, or other similar permit if the Group Child Care Home 
meets all of the standards in the law. 

 
This analysis first looks at the criteria in the Zoning ordinance and then considers the 
standards in the state law.  The criteria/standards are listed under each heading (in bold 
text), and we provide a response for this proposal after each (in italics). 
 
 
Township Zoning Ordinance Section 1003. – Standards for Special land uses:  
 
Per this section, the Planning Commission shall review the particular circumstances and 
facts of each proposed use in terms of the following standards and required findings, and 
with respect to any additional standards set forth in the ordinance. The Planning 
Commission shall find and report adequate data, information, and evidence showing that 
the proposed use meets all required standards and [the following criteria]: 
 

a. Will be harmonious, and in accordance with the objectives, intent, and 
purpose of this ordinance; and 
 

b. Will be compatible with a natural environment and existing and future land 
uses in the vicinity; and 

  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

c. Will be compatible with the township master plans; and 
 

d. Will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, such as 
highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage ways and structures, 
refuse disposal, or that the persons or agencies responsible for the 
establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately for 
such services; and 
 

e. Will not be detrimental, hazardous, or disturbing to existing or future 
neighboring uses, persons, property, or the public welfare; and  

 
f. Will not create additional requirements at public costs for public facilities 

and services that will be detrimental to the economic welfare of the 
community. 
 
Staff comment: The Group Day Care Home is offering care for up to 12 children in 
a residential setting.  Will the applicant’s own children attend the Group Day Care?  
If yes, how many of the applicant’s own children will attend? 
 
This site is located on the interior of a residential neighborhood, away from busy 
roads or incompatible land uses.  The rear yard is fenced with a 4-foot-tall cyclone 
fence, which provides a suitable outdoor environment for play, and is away from 
the road. However, this height and type of fence does not provide any screening 
of activity in this yard from the neighbor’s yards.  Childcare of this scope is typically 
located within a residential neighborhood  and would be considered compatible 
with the residential character envisioned by the Township’s Master Plan as long 
as it is managed to minimize noise and disturbance.   
 
Regarding whether this use is likely to be detrimental to the neighborhood, future 
uses, or public welfare, the Group Day Care Home will offer outdoor play activities, 
as required.  The property is 8,712 s.f. in area, and the rear, fenced-in yard is 
approximately 2,800 s.f. in area.  The application materials indicate that the 
proposed hours of operation are 7:00am – 6:00pm, Monday-Friday.  These times 
during the week are within the same general periods of daily activity in a residential 
area.  We have the following questions and requests for additional information:  
• The applicant should provide specific times when the outdoor play area will be 

used, including: 
- Times of day 
- Number of times per day 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

- Duration of outdoor playtime 
- Number of children at a time 

• Is the applicant planning on providing any screening in the rear yard from the 
neighbors to help mitigate noise/activity experienced by the neighbors during 
outdoor playtime?  Does the Homeowners Association permit privacy fencing 
(i.e., six-foot-tall, opaque fencing)? 

 
The proposed use would likely not create additional requirements at public costs 
for public facilities and services that will be detrimental to the economic welfare of 
the community.  The proposal would provide a beneficial service to working 
parents in the community. 
 
The Planning Commission will need to evaluate the proposal, and the new 
information presented by the applicant, and determine if the use meets the criteria 
in the ordinance. 
 

 
Township Zoning Ordinance Section 1155. – Standards for State-Licensed Child and Adult 
Care Facilities:  
The Township’s zoning ordinance Sec. 1155 has additional requirements for state-
licensed residential child and adult care facilities.  To approve the Special Land use for 
this site, the proposal shall meet the following standards: 
 

a. These facilities, except for adult/child family day care homes, shall be 
registered with the Ypsilanti Township Community Development Department 
and shall continually have on file with the township documentation of a valid 
license as required by the state. 
 
Staff comment: If approved, the [Child] Group Day Care Home shall register with 
the Ypsilanti Township Community Development Department and shall continually 
have on file with the Township documentation of a valid license as required by the 
state.  We recommend that this requirement be a condition of any Special Land 
Use approval, if granted. 
 

  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

b. Since the state law preempts in this area, these facilities shall be brought 
into compliance with all state building and fire codes pursuant to State 
Licensing Rules R400.1131—R400.1135. Documentation of such compliance 
with state requirements shall be provided. 
 
Staff comment: If approved, the [Child] Group Day Care Home shall be brought 
into compliance with all state building and fire codes pursuant to State Licensing 
Rules R400.1831—R400.1835 before beginning operation. Documentation of 
such compliance with state requirements shall be provided to the Office of 
Community Standards.  We recommend that this requirement be a condition of 
any Special Land Use approval, if granted. 
 

c. The site shall comply with the sign provisions of Sec. 1509, Signs. 
 

Staff comment: No signs are proposed or would be permitted per Sec. 1509. 
 

d. Off-street parking shall be provided for the number of employees on site at 
any one time. 
 
Staff comment: The application form states that the applicant will have two 
“helpers”, a 40-year-old and a 14-year-old.  While the Township does not have 
jurisdiction over the qualifications of the “helpers” or “caregivers,” state law may 
restrict childcare staff members to “adults,” or a person 18 years of age or older.  
The applicant’s narrative also explains that they may hire additional full-time staff 
as they grow past six (6) children.  
 
In determining parking for the current proposal, we only consider the 40-year-old 
helper (or caregiver) in the parking calculation.  The Township zoning ordinance 
requires that two (2) parking spaces be provided for the dwelling unit and one (1) 
additional space for each caregiver, for a total of three (3) required parking spaces 
at this time.  
 
The establishment will have one (1) assistant caregiver, in addition to the 
homeowner. The subject property complies with the required number of spaces 
via the two-car garage and two (2) off-street parking spaces in the driveway for a 
total of four (4) off-street parking spaces.  The limited number of parking spaces 
on this site will also limit additional caregivers to one (1) more.      
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

The application materials explain that their clients will use the street at the front of 
the house to drop off and pick up their children.  Parking is permitted on both sides 
of Falmouth Dr. 

 
e. If located in a single-family residential district, the building shall have an 

appearance which is nonintrusive and consistent in color, materials, roof-
line and architecture, as determined by the planning commission.  
 
Staff comment: The Group Child Care Home will be located in a single-family 
dwelling.  The applicant has not proposed any changes to the exterior of the home. 
The subject property is consistent in appearance with other single-family homes in 
the neighborhood.  The applicant should confirm that they will continue to use the 
building as their residence and as its primary use. 

 
f. Documentation of sufficient indoor classroom, crib or play area meeting 

state requirements shall be provided. Documentation of approved areas, as 
licensed by the state, shall be provided. 
 
Staff comment: The applicant provided documentation of the layout of the home, 
but this information will need to be evaluated by the state for the Group Child Care 
Home license. We recommend that any approval granted by the Planning 
Commission be conditioned on the site be licensed by the State, including 
requirements for indoor and outdoor classrooms, crib, and play areas. 

 
g. There shall be sufficient outdoor play area to meet state regulations. All 

required outdoor play areas shall be fenced with a four-foot tall fence, 
provided that no fence shall be located in a front yard. 
 
Staff comment: The state will inspect the play area during the licensing process.  
However, our site visit and analysis appears to confirm that there is fenced rear 
yard, and determined by measuring the survey that the rear yard is approximately 
2,800 s.f.  As above, we recommend that any approval be conditioned upon the 
site meet the requirements for State licensing. 

 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act. – Requirements for Group Childcare Homes:  
The following lists the requirements in the Zoning Enabling Act (ZEA).  If these 
requirements are met by a proposed Group Childcare Home, then the ZEA stipulates that 
a Special Land Use permit shall be granted.  The criteria are shown in bold text; staff 
comments in italics. 
 
Section 125.3206 
(4)   For a county or township, a group childcare home shall be issued a special 

use permit, conditional use permit, or other similar permit if the group 
childcare home meets all of the following standards: 
(a)  Is located not closer than 1,500 feet to any of the following: 

  (i)   Another licensed group child care home. 
  (ii)  An adult foster care small group home or large group home 

licensed under the adult foster care facility licensing act, 1979 PA 
218, MCL 400.701 to 400.737. 

  (iii) A facility offering substance use disorder services to 7 or more 
people that is licensed under part 62 of the public health code, 
1978 PA 368, MCL 333.6230 to 333.6251. 

  (iv) A community correction center, resident home, halfway house, or 
other similar facility that houses an inmate population under the 
jurisdiction of the department of corrections. 

 
Staff comment:  The closest licensed group daycare home is 9,134.4 ft. away 
located at 6191 Rawsonville Road, Van Buren Township (Blooming Buddies 
Childcare).  The Township has no record of a substance use disorder or 
correction center/resident home or similar facility within 1,500 feet of this 
property. 

 
(b) Has appropriate fencing for the safety of the children in the group child 

care home as determined by the local unit of government. 
 

Staff comment: Per the application submitted by Melinda Cutliff, the rear yard 
is fenced in with a 4’ tall chain-link fence and a play structure is available for 
children to use.  During the site visit, we confirmed that the fence is 4’ tall. 

 
(c) Maintains the property consistent with the visible characteristics of the 

neighborhood. 
 

Staff comment: The applicant has not proposed any changes to the exterior of 
the home and it is consistent with the character of the neighborhood. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

(d) Does not exceed 16 hours of operation during a 24-hour period. The local 
unit of government may limit but not prohibit the operation of a group 
child care home between the hours of 10 p.m. and 6 a.m. 

 
Staff comment: The applicant proposes operating five (5) days a week from 
7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (11 hours in a 24-hour period). 

 
(e) Meets regulations, if any, governing signs used by a group childcare 

home to identify itself. 
 

Staff comment: No signs are proposed, and none would be allowed per Sec. 
1509. 

 
(f) Meets regulations, if any, requiring a group child care home operator to 

provide off-street parking accommodations for his or her employees. 
 
Staff comment: As mentioned above, we only consider the 40-year-old helper 
(or caregiver) in the parking calculation.  The Township zoning ordinance 
requires that two (2) parking spaces be provided for the dwelling unit and one 
(1) additional space for each caregiver (total of 3 spaces). The proposal will 
have one (1) assistant caregiver; however, in the applicant’s narrative, they 
state that more full-time staff will be hired as they grow past six (6) children. 
Regarding the current proposal (1 caregiver), the subject property complies 
with the required number of off-street parking spaces, or two (2) in the garage  
and two (2) parking spaces in the driveway for a total of four (4) off-street 
parking spaces.  Note that this site will only permit one (1) additional caregiver 
so future expansion of this use will be limited to one (1) more caregiver than 
currently proposed.  
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Zoning Enabling Act (ZEA) requires the Planning Commission to approve a Group 
Day Care Home if the proposal meets the standards in the Act.  However, the Special 
Land Use standards also should be met to the greatest extent possible within the 
parameters of the ZEA.  The applicant should provide the following information (listed 
below).  Also, we recommend that the Planning Commission discuss two issues in the 
ZEA with the applicant: 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

1) Will the 4’ tall chain-link fence provide adequate safety for the children using the 
outdoor play area? 

2) Will operation of a Group Day Care Home in this neighborhood, serving up to 12 
children, maintain the property consistent with the visible characteristics of the 
neighborhood? 

 
Also, the applicant should provide the following information: 

1) Will the applicant’s own children attend the Group Day Care?  If yes, how many of 
the applicant’s own children will attend? 

2) The applicant should provide specific times when the outdoor play area will be 
used, including: 

- Times of day 
- Number of times per day 
- Duration of outdoor playtime 
- Number of children using the outdoor play area at a time 

3) Is the applicant planning on providing any screening to the neighbors in the rear 
yard to help mitigate noise/activity during outdoor playtime?  Does the 
Homeowners Association permit privacy fencing (i.e., six-foot-tall, opaque 
fencing)? 

4) The applicant should confirm that they will continue to use the building as their 
residence and as its primary use. 

 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 
 
The following suggested motions are provided to assist the Commission in making the 
desired motion of their choice. The Commission may use, add, or reject any conditions 
suggested herein as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to approve: 
I move to approve the Special Land Use permit request of Melinda Cutliff for the purpose 
of allowing a Group Day Care Home, providing care for up to twelve (12) children, for a 
site zoned R-3, Residential, located at 9674 Falmouth Drive, parcel, K-11-35-109-160 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall agree to enter into a Special Land Use agreement (Per Sec. 
1004(4), Conditions of Approval), outlining the following conditions: 

a. The applicant shall supply, prior to operation of a Group Day Care Home, 
to the Office of Community Standards a daycare application and all 
documentation as required by the daycare application, including but not 
limited to, scaled and accurate survey drawing, correlated with a legal 
description and showing all existing buildings, drives, and other 
improvements; copy of state license; copy of inspection reports, drawings 
or pictures of the house layout, showing the rooms that will be utilized for 
the daycare. 

b. The Group Day Care Home shall register with the Ypsilanti Township 
Community Development Department and shall continually have on file with 
the Township documentation of a valid license as required by the state. 

c. the Group Day Care Home shall be brought into compliance with all state 
building and fire codes pursuant to State Licensing Rules R400.1831—
R400.1835 before beginning operation. Documentation of such compliance 
with state requirements shall be provided to the Office of Community 
Standards. 

d. To comply with the Township sign ordinance, no exterior signs advertising 
the Group Day Care Home is permitted. 

e. Due to the site’s limited on-street parking, the number of caregivers will be 
limited to two (2) persons.  Required off-street parking shall be provided 
during hours of operation. 

f. The site shall be licensed by the State and meet requirements for indoor 
and outdoor classrooms, crib, and play areas, and an outdoor play area 
shall be provided pursuant to state licensing rules. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

2. For the safety of all occupants and upon sufficient notice, the applicant shall permit, 
prior to operation of a Group Day Care Home, the dwelling to be inspected by the 
Township Building official and/or Fire Marshal to ensure compliance with the 
adopted property maintenance code. 

 
 
Motion to table: 
I move to table the Special Land Use permit request of Melinda Cutliff for the purpose of 
allowing a Group Day Care Home, providing care for up to twelve (12) children, for a site 
zoned R-3, Residential, located at 9674 Falmouth Drive, parcel, K-11-35-109-160 in order 
to consider the comments presented during this public hearing, the additional information 
offered by the applicant at this meeting, and to further allow the applicant time to resolve 
the issues noted during this public hearing and Planning Commission discussion. 
 
 
Motion to deny: 
I move to deny the Special Land Use permit request of Melinda Cutliff for the purpose of 
allowing a Group Day Care Home, providing care for up to twelve (12) children, for a site 
zoned R-3, Residential, located at 9674 Falmouth Drive, parcel, K-11-35-109-160 
following reasons (Commissioner to insert reasons for denial): 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. ________________________________________________________________ 
 

3. ________________________________________________________________ 
 

4. ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Lauren Doppke 
Staff Planner  

Sally Elmiger 
Ypsilanti Township Planning Consultant 

 
 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

MICHIGAN ZONING ENABLING ACT (EXCERPT)  
Act 110 of 2006 

 
 
125.3206 Residential use of property; adult foster care facilities; family or group 
child care homes. 

Sec. 206. 

(1)  Except as provided in subsection (2), each of the following is a residential use of 
property for the purposes of zoning and a permitted use in all residential zones 
and is not subject to a special use or conditional use permit or procedure different 
from those required for other dwellings of similar density in the same zone: 
(i)  A state licensed residential facility. 
(ii)  A facility in use as described in section 3(4) (k) of the adult foster care facility 

licensing act, 1979 PA 218, MCL 400.703. 
(2)  Subsection (1) does not apply to adult foster care facilities licensed by a state 

agency for care and treatment of persons released from or assigned to adult 
correctional institutions. 

(3)  For a county or township, a family child care home is a residential use of property 
for the purposes of zoning and a permitted use in all residential zones and is not 
subject to a special use or conditional use permit or procedure different from those 
required for other dwellings of similar density in the same zone. 

(4)  For a county or township, a group child care home shall be issued a special use 
permit, conditional use permit, or other similar permit if the group child care home 
meets all of the following standards: 
(a)  Is located not closer than 1,500 feet to any of the following: 

(i)  Another licensed group child care home. 
(ii)  An adult foster care small group home or large group home licensed 

under the adult foster care facility licensing act, 1979 PA 218, MCL 
400.701 to 400.737. 

(iii)  A facility offering substance use disorder services to 7 or more 
people that is licensed under part 62 of the public health code, 1978 
PA 368, MCL 333.6230 to 333.6251. 

(iv)  A community correction center, resident home, halfway house, or 
other similar facility that houses an inmate population under the 
jurisdiction of the department of corrections. 

(b)  Has appropriate fencing for the safety of the children in the group child care 
home as determined by the local unit of government. 

(c)  Maintains the property consistent with the visible characteristics of the 
neighborhood. 

(d)  Does not exceed 16 hours of operation during a 24-hour period. The local 
unit of government may limit but not prohibit the operation of a group child 
care home between the hours of 10 p.m. and 6 a.m. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

(e)  Meets regulations, if any, governing signs used by a group child care home 
to identify itself. 

(f)  Meets regulations, if any, requiring a group child care home operator to 
provide off-street parking accommodations for his or her employees. 

(5)  For a city or village, a group child care home may be issued a special use permit, 
conditional use permit, or other similar permit. 

(6)  A licensed or registered family or group child care home that operated before 
March 30, 1989 is not required to comply with this section. 

(7)  This section does not prohibit a local unit of government from inspecting a family 
or group child care home for the home's compliance with and enforcing the local 
unit of government's zoning ordinance. For a county or township, an ordinance 
shall not be more restrictive for a family or group child care home than 1973 PA 
116, MCL 722.111 to 722.128. 

(8)  The establishment of any of the facilities listed under subsection (4)(a) after 
issuance of a special use permit, conditional use permit, or other similar permit 
pertaining to the group child care home does not affect renewal of that permit. 

(9)  This section does not prohibit a local unit of government from issuing a special use 
permit, conditional use permit, or other similar permit to a licensed group child care 
home that does not meet the standards listed under subsection (4). 

(10)  The distances required under subsection (4)(a) shall be measured along a road, 
street, or place maintained by this state or a local unit of government and generally 
open to the public as a matter of right for the purpose of vehicular traffic, not 
including an alley. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





































 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Staff Report  
MNL Investment LLC 

10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
Class A Non-Conforming Designation   

May 07, 2025  
 
Applicant: Bazo Construction 
 
Plan Date: February 11, 2025  
 
Location: 10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 Parcel K-11-24-300-006 
 
Zoning: NB – Neighborhood Business 
 
Action Requested: Class A Non-Conforming Designation  
 
CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of a Class A Non-Conforming 
Designation Application from Bazo Construction representing MNL Investments LLC 
requesting a Class A Designation for one legal non-conforming sign located at 10131 
Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198.  MNL Investments LLC seeks this approval so they can 
change the face of the existing pole sign.  

CROSS REFERENCES 
• Article 13, Site Design Standards  
• Article 15, Signs  
• Article 16, Nonconformities  

 
SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND MASTER PLAN 
The site is currently used as a vehicle fueling station and convenience store.  The site is 
0.459-acres (19,994 sq. ft.) in size, and is occupied by a 2,400 sq. ft. commercial building, 
two gas pumps (4 fueling stations), and a canopy over the gas pumps.  The property is 
zoned NB, Neighborhood Business. 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2040 Master Plan designates this site as 
Neighborhood Preservation, which is described as established residential neighborhoods 
primarily north of Ford Lake and I-94. The intent is to preserve and strengthen the 
neighborhoods through investment and infill.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 – Aerial Photograph 2024 
 

 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 – Site Inspection 2025 
 

 
 

ADJACENT USES, ZONING AND MASTER PLAN 
Direction Use Zoning Master Plan 

North Apartment Building RM-HD – Multiple 
Family High Density  Neighborhood Preservation 

South Vacant R-4 – Single Family 
Residential 

Innovation and Employment 
District 

East Vacant RM-HD – Multiple 
Family High Density Neighborhood Preservation 

West Vacant R-2 – One-Family 
Residential Neighborhood Preservation 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

ANALYSIS  
 
Article 15 – Signs.  Sec. 1500(13) – Class A Nonconforming Sign Designation.  
 
Class A nonconforming signs shall be considered to be conforming signs for purposes of 
repair, service, or the changing of sign copy in a manner that does not require structural 
changes or any change to the sign box or enclosure. The Planning Commission may 
grant a Class A nonconforming sign designation in those instances where a determination 
is made after public hearing that the continuance of a nonconforming sign meets both the 
criteria found in Section 1602.2 and the following: 
A. The granting of a continuance of the nonconforming sign will not create unfair 

advertising advantage over other properties in conformance with the sign provisions 
of this Article. 

B. A nonconforming use shall not be permitted to add additional signs to the building 
or premises. Existing signs accessory to nonconforming uses may be maintained. 

 
This analysis first looks at the two criteria above, and then considers the criteria in Sec. 
1602.2.  The criteria in the ordinance are listed below in bold text below; our comments 
follow in italics. 
 
A. The granting of a continuance of the nonconforming sign will not create unfair 

advertising advantage over other properties in conformance with the sign 
provisions of this Article. 

 
Staff Comments:  The table below compares the dimensions of the existing sign and 
the proposed sign: 
 

 
Neighborhood Business  

Ground Sign Requirements 
Existing Non-Conforming 

Sign Proposed Sign 

Max. Sign Area:  32 sq. ft. 30 sq. ft. 30 sq. ft. 

Max. Sign Height: 6 feet Approx. 12-13 ft. No Change Proposed 

Min. Setback: 10 feet Approx. 6 ft. No Change Proposed 

 
 
The proposed sign will be the same size area.  A very similar sign has been in this location 
for a number of years.  We don’t consider the new sign face to give this property owner 
an unfair advantage over other properties that conform with the current sign provisions. 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

B. A nonconforming use shall not be permitted to add additional signs to the 
building or premises. Existing signs accessory to nonconforming uses may 
be maintained. 
 
Staff Comments:  The fueling station/convenience store was legally established on 
this site.  The proposal is not adding to the number of signs at this site.   

 
 
 
Article 16. – Nonconformities. Sec. 1602. – Class A Nonconforming Designation 
 
1. A determination that the structure or use of land is nonconforming as defined 

in the ordinance.  
 

Staff Comments:  The existing sign structure does not comply with the current 
ordinance, as it is taller than permitted (approx. 12-13 feet vs. 6 feet) and is set back 
from the property line a shorter distance than permitted ( 6 ft. vs. 10 ft.).  These 
features make the existing sign non-conforming. 
  

 
2. The nonconformity does not significantly depress the value of nearby 

properties.  
 

Staff Comments:  The Planning Department does not believe that the continuation of 
this non-conforming sign will suppress the value of nearby properties. The new sign 
face is the same size as the existing non-conforming sign face.  
 

 
3. The nonconformity is not contrary to the public health, safety, and welfare.  

 
Staff Comments:  The continuation of this sign as a Class A Non-Conforming Sign is 
not expected to affect public health, safety, or welfare. Its presence does not obstruct 
visibility or interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic.  

 
 

4. No useful purpose would be served by the strict application of requirements for 
such a nonconformity under this Ordinance. 
 
Staff Comments:  Enforcing strict compliance would require the applicant to remove 
or replace the existing sign with one conforming to current standards, despite the 
sign’s historical compliance and current structural soundness. The sign's visibility 
serves the local traffic along this road, and the non-conforming structure continues to 
meet the needs of the business. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
5. Signage: Signage associated with the use shall be in compliance with Article 

15. 
 
Staff Comments:  While the sign does not comply with the current height and setback 
dimensions in Article 15, it was legally erected and has remained in good condition. 
Granting the Class A Designation will allow the property owner to change the sign 
copy in compliance with legal non-conforming regulations without requiring structural 
alterations. 

 
 

6. Plan for site improvements: 
 
Staff Comments:  The Office of Community Standards has been working with the 
applicant to bring the site into compliance with current standards. 
 

 
7. Other conditions may be attached to the approval to assure that the structure 

or use of land does not become contrary to this Ordinance. 
 
Staff Comments:  The Planning Commission may require additional conditions, such 
as regular maintenance of the sign and compliance with lighting requirements, to 
ensure the site remains in harmony with the surrounding area. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
The Planning Department has reviewed the application for a Class A Non-Conforming 
Designation for the legal non-conforming sign at 10131 Textile Road. The requested 
designation will allow the applicant to change the copy on an existing pole sign, bringing 
it into better compliance with the Township’s legal non-conforming standards. The 
Planning Department recommends approval of the Class A Non-Conforming Designation 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. The property owner shall comply with all current Township Sign Ordinance 
standards regarding maintenance and repair of the sign structure. 

2. The property owner shall comply with ordinance lighting standards regarding sign 
lighting. 

3. [ADD ANY OTHER CONDITIONS BASED ON PLANNING COMMISSION 
DISCUSSION]  

 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 
The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to assist the Planning 
Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this application. The commission 
may utilize, add, or reject any conditions suggested herein, as they deem appropriate.  
 
Motion to postpone:  
 
“I move to postpone the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by 
Bazo Construction on behalf of MNL Investment LLC, for one legal non-conforming pole 
sign at 10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-24-300-006, to consider 
comments and feedback presented at this evening’s Planning Commission Meeting.” 
 
Motion to approve:  
 
“I move to approve the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by 
Bazo Construction on behalf of MNL Investment LLC, for one legal non-conforming pole 
sign at 10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-24-300-006, with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The property owner shall comply with all current Township Sign Ordinance 
standards regarding maintenance and repair of the sign structure. 

2. The property owner shall comply with ordinance lighting standards regarding sign 
lighting. 

3. [ADD ANY OTHER CONDITIONS BASED ON PLANNING COMMISSION 
DISCUSSION].”  

 
 
Motion to deny:  
 
“I move to deny the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by Bazo 
Construction on behalf of MNL Investment LLC, for one legal non-conforming pole sign 
at 10131 Textile Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-24-300-006, due to the following 
reasons:” 
 
1.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Lauren Doppke 
Staff Planner  

Sally Elmiger 
Ypsilanti Township Planning Consultant 

 
 







 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Staff Report  
Ypsi Oil Company INC 

2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
Class A Non-Conforming Designation   

May 07, 2025  
 
Applicant: Your Signs & Graphics Inc. 
 
Plan Date: January 01, 2025  
 
Location: 2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 Parcel K-11-24-100-005 
 
Zoning: GB – General Business 
 
Action Requested: Class A Non-Conforming Designation  
 
CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of a Class A Non-Conforming 
Designation Application from Your Signs & Graphics Inc. representing Ypsi Oil Company 
Inc. requesting a Class A Designation for one, legal non-conforming sign located at 2120 
Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198. Ypsi Oil Company Inc. seeks this approval so 
they can change the copy of the existing pole sign.  

CROSS REFERENCES 
• Article 13, Site Design Standards  
• Article 15, Signs  
• Article 16, Nonconformities  

 
SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND MASTER PLAN 
The current site is used as a vehicle fueling station and convenience store.  The site is 
0.847-acres (36,895 s.f.) in size, and is occupied by a 2,300 s.f. commercial building, 
eight gas pumps (16 fueling stations), and a canopy over the gas pumps.  The property 
is zoned GB, General Business. 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2040 Master Plan designates this site as 
Neighborhood Transition District, which has multiple family housing, commercial and 
office uses, but can include single-family homes and institutional/civic uses and spaces. 
Uses shall be compatible with the existing areas and respect adjacent neighborhoods. 
The district is intended to serve as a sensible transition from Neighborhood Preservation 
area to more intense uses.  
 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 – Aerial Photograph 2025 
 

 
 
ADJACENT USES, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Direction Use Zoning Master Plan 

North MDOT Highway N/A  Neighborhood Transition 
District 

South Bank GB- General Business Neighborhood Transition 
District 

East Salon  GB- General Business Neighborhood Transition 
District 

West Vacant RM-LD – Multiple Family 
Low Density 

Neighborhood Transition 
District 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 – Site Inspection 2025 – Existing Sign 
 

 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

ANALYSIS  
 
Article 15 – Signs.  Sec. 1500(13) – Class A Nonconforming Sign Designation.  
 
Class A nonconforming signs shall be considered to be conforming signs for purposes of 
repair, service, or the changing of sign copy in a manner that does not require structural 
changes or any change to the sign box or enclosure. The Planning Commission may 
grant a Class A nonconforming sign designation in those instances where a determination 
is made after public hearing that the continuance of a nonconforming sign meets both the 
criteria found in Section 1602.2 and the following: 
A. The granting of a continuance of the nonconforming sign will not create unfair 

advertising advantage over other properties in conformance with the sign provisions 
of this Article. 

B. A nonconforming use shall not be permitted to add additional signs to the building 
or premises. Existing signs accessory to nonconforming uses may be maintained. 

 
This analysis first looks at the two criteria above, and then considers the criteria in Sec. 
1602.2.  The criteria in the ordinance are listed below in bold text below; our comments 
follow in italics. 
 
A. The granting of a continuance of the nonconforming sign will not create unfair 

advertising advantage over other properties in conformance with the sign 
provisions of this Article. 

 
Staff Comments:  The table below compares the dimensions of the existing sign and 
the proposed sign: 
 

 
General Business Ground Sign 

Requirements 
Existing Non-Conforming 

Sign 
Proposed Sign 

Max. Sign Area:  50 sq. ft. Upper Sign: 61.57 sq. ft. 
Middle Sign: 12.07 sq. ft. 
Price Signs: 42.69 sq. ft. 
Diesel Sign: 9.26 sq. ft. 
Total:  125.59 sq. ft. 

Upper Sign: 61.57 sq. ft. 
Price Sign: 42.69 sq. ft. 

Total: 104.26 sq. ft. 

Max. Sign Height: 6 feet Approx. 19 ft. No Change Proposed 

Min. Setback: 10 feet Approx. 16 ft. No Change Proposed 

 
The proposed sign will be smaller in area, and have fewer individual signs.  A very similar 
sign has been in this location since 1997.  We don’t consider the new signage to give this 
property owner an unfair advantage over other properties that conform with the current 
sign provisions. 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

B. A nonconforming use shall not be permitted to add additional signs to the 
building or premises. Existing signs accessory to nonconforming uses may 
be maintained. 
 
Staff Comments:  The fueling station/convenience store was legally established on 
this site.  The proposal is not adding, but subtracting, the number of signs.   

 
 
 
Article 16. – Nonconformities. Sec. 1602. – Class A Nonconforming Designation 
 
1. A determination that the structure or use of land is nonconforming as defined 

in the ordinance.  
 

Staff Comments:  The existing sign structure does not comply with the current 
ordinance, as it is taller than permitted (approx. 19 feet vs. 6 feet) and is greater in 
sign area than permitted (104.25 sq. ft. vs. 50 sq. ft.).  These features make the 
existing sign non-conforming. 
  

 
2. The nonconformity does not significantly depress the value of nearby 

properties.  
 

Staff Comments:  The Planning Department does not believe that the continuation of 
this non-conforming sign will suppress values of nearby properties. The new sign 
faces reduce the existing sign area non-conformity.  
 

 
3. The nonconformity is not contrary to the public health, safety, and welfare.  

 
Staff Comments:  The continuation of this sign as a Class A Non-Conforming Sign is 
not expected to affect public health, safety, or welfare. Its presence does not obstruct 
visibility or interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic. The sign’s height and setback 
provide adequate distance from the sidewalk, and there is no adverse safety 
concerns associated with the requested sign face change. 

 
 

4. No useful purpose would be served by the strict application of requirements for 
such a nonconformity under this Ordinance. 
 
Staff Comments:  Enforcing strict compliance would require the applicant to remove 
or replace the existing sign with one conforming to current standards, despite the 
sign’s historical compliance and current structural soundness. As the sign's visibility 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

serves both local and regional traffic, the non-conforming structure continues to meet 
the needs of the business and is consistent with other signs along this corridor. 

 
 

5. Signage: Signage associated with the use shall be in compliance with Article 
15. 
 
Staff Comments:  While the sign does not comply with the current height and square 
footage limits in Article 15, it was legally erected and has remained in good condition. 
Granting the Class A Designation will allow the property owner to change the sign 
copy in compliance with legal non-conforming regulations without requiring structural 
alterations. 

 
 

6. Plan for site improvements: 
 
Staff Comments:  The Office of Community Standards has been working with the 
applicant to bring the site into compliance with current standards. 
 

 
7. Other conditions may be attached to the approval to assure that the structure 

or use of land does not become contrary to this Ordinance. 
 
Staff Comments:  The Planning Commission may require additional conditions, such 
as regular maintenance of the sign and compliance with lighting requirements, to 
ensure the site remains in harmony with the surrounding area. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
The Planning Department has reviewed the application for a Class A Non-Conforming 
Designation for the legal non-conforming sign at 2120 Rawsonville Rd. The requested 
designation will allow the applicant to change the copy on an existing pole sign, bringing 
it into better compliance with the Township’s legal non-conforming standards. The 
Planning Department recommends approval of the Class A Non-Conforming Designation 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. The property owner shall comply with all current Township Sign Ordinance 
standards regarding maintenance and repair of the sign structure. 

2. The property owner shall comply with ordinance lighting standards regarding sign 
lighting. 

3. [ADD ANY OTHER CONDITIONS BASED ON PLANNING COMMISSION 
DISCUSSION]  

 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 
The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to assist the Planning 
Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this application. The commission 
may utilize, add, or reject any conditions suggested herein, as they deem appropriate.  
 
Motion to postpone:  
 
“I move to postpone the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by 
Your Signs & Graphics Inc. on behalf of Ypsi Oil Company Inc. for one legal non-
conforming pole sign at 2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel K-11-24-
100-005, to consider comments and feedback presented at this evening’s Planning 
Commission Meeting.” 
 
Motion to approve:  
 
“I move to approve the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by 
Your Signs & Graphics Inc. on behalf of Ypsi Oil Company Inc. for one legal non-
conforming pole sign at 2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel K-11-24-
100-005, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The property owner shall comply with all current Township Sign Ordinance 
standards regarding maintenance and repair of the sign structure. 

2. The property owner shall comply with ordinance lighting standards regarding sign 
lighting. 

3. [ADD ANY OTHER CONDITIONS BASED ON PLANNING COMMISSION 
DISCUSSION].”  

 
 
Motion to deny:  
 
“I move to approve the Class A Non-Conforming Designation application submitted by 
Your Signs & Graphics Inc. on behalf of Ypsi Oil Company Inc. for one legal non-
conforming pole sign at 2120 Rawsonville Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel K-11-24-
100-005, due to the following reasons:” 
 
1.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Lauren Doppke 
Staff Planner  

Sally Elmiger 
Ypsilanti Township Planning Consultant 

 




























































	10131 Textile Road - Staff Report.pdf
	Case Location and Summary
	Cross References
	Subject Site Use, Zoning and Master Plan
	Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Master Plan
	Analysis
	Recommendations

	2120 Rawsonville Road - Staff Report.pdf
	Case Location and Summary
	Cross References
	Subject Site Use, Zoning and Master Plan
	Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan
	Analysis
	Recommendations




